
 

 

Please ask for Democratic Services: Telephone 01775 764838  

e-mail: demservices@sholland.gov.uk 

 

REVISED 
AGENDA 
 
 

Committee - SPALDING TOWN FORUM 
 
Date & Time - Thursday, 13 October 2022 at 6.30 pm 
 

Venue - Virtual Meeting via Zoom 
 
 

Membership of the Spalding Town Forum: 
 
Councillors: A C Cronin, H Drury, R Gambba-Jones (Chairman), R A Gibson (Vice-
Chairman), M Hasan, C J Lawton, J D McLean, G A Porter, G P Scalese, G J Taylor and 
E J Sneath (Advisory Member) 
 
No substitutions permitted.  Revised quorum 3.  
 

 

 Persons attending the meeting are 
requested to turn their mobile telephones to 

silent mode 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Democratic Services 
Council Offices, Priory Road 
Spalding, Lincs PE11 2XE 
 
Date:   11 October 2022 



A G E N D A 
 
1.  Apologies for absence.  

 
 

2.  Minutes -  
To sign as a correct record the minutes of the following meetings: 
 

 

a)  Spalding Town Forum - 8 June 2022 (copy enclosed)   
 

(Pages 
3 - 12) 

 
b)  Special Spalding Town Forum - 17 August 2022 (copy enclosed)   

 
(Pages 
13 - 16) 

3.  Declaration of Interests. -  
Where a Councillor has a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest the Councillor 
must declare the interest to the meeting and leave the room without 
participating in any discussion or making a statement on the item, 
except where a Councillor is permitted to remain as a result of a grant of 
dispensation. 
 

 

4.  Q1 Spalding Special Expenses Forecast Outturn 2022/23 -  
To consider the Spalding Special Expenses 2022/23 Quarter 1 Forecast 
Outturn (report of the Deputy Chief Executive – Corporate Development 
(S151) enclosed). 
 

(Pages 
17 - 24) 

5.  Spalding Town Centre Improvement Plan Update -  
An update on the Town Centre Improvement Plan has been enclosed at 
this agenda item and the Assistant Director – Strategic Growth and 
Development will be in attendance to answer the Forum’s questions on 
the update provided. 
 

(Pages 
25 - 32) 

6.  New Spalding CCTV Cameras -  
The Community Safety and Enforcement Manager and the Boston 
CCTV Manager will be in attendance to give an overview of the new 
CCTV cameras that have been installed in Spalding and the benefits of 
the cameras. 
 

 

7.  Spalding Flower Parade Float Update -  
The Chairman of the Forum will provide an update on the progress of 
the Spalding Float for the 2023 Spalding Flower Parade. 
 

 

8.  Any other items which the Chairman decides are urgent –  
 
NOTE: No other business is permitted unless by reason of 

special circumstances, which shall be specified in the 
minutes, the Chairman is of the opinion that the item(s) 
should be considered as a matter of urgency.   

 

 

 



- 1 - 
 

Minutes of a meeting of the SPALDING TOWN FORUM held via Zoom, on 
Wednesday, 8 June 2022 at 6.30 pm. 
 

 PRESENT  

  
R Gambba-Jones (Chairman) 

 
A C Cronin 
R A Gibson (Vice-
Chairman) 
M Hasan 
 

C J Lawton 
J D McLean 
A M Newton 
 

G P Scalese 
E J Sneath 
G J Taylor 
 

Apologies for absence were received from or on behalf of Councillor G A Porter  
 
In Attendance: G Scott (Spalding Transport Forum), R Perkins (Castle Sports 
Complex Bowls Club), J Bland (Civic Society), the Assistant Director – Strategic 
Growth and Development, the Strategic Operational and Property Manager, the 
Democratic Services Manager and the Democratic Services Assistant. 
 
 Action By 

1. MINUTES   

  

 Consideration was given to the minutes of the meeting held on 22 
March 2022. 
 
AGREED: 
 
That the minutes be signed as a correct record.  

 

   

2. ACTIONS   

  

 The Chairman introduced the new ‘Actions’ standing item which 
contained officer responses to Forum Members’ questions raised 
at the previous meeting. 
 
The Actions item was welcomed by the Forum and would come 
forward as a regular item. 
 
AGREED: 
 
That the Actions update be noted. 

 

   

3. DECLARATION OF INTERESTS.   

  

 There were none.  

   

4. ASSETS UPDATE   

  

 The Strategic Operational and Property Manager attended the 
meeting to provide an update on the following Spalding Special 

 

Page 3

Agenda Item 2.a)



- 2 - 
 
SPALDING TOWN FORUM - 8 June 2022 

 

 

Expenses funded assets: 

• Ayscoughfee Gardens – A significant range of jobs, both 
large and small, had been completed: 

o New toilets were being installed and improvements 
were being made to the Café which was expected to 
re-open fully at the start of July. 

o Benches had been repainted, new LED security 
lights installed, the community wall rebuilt, and the 
war memorials had been cleaned. 

o The pond had been refurbished and had received 
positive feedback from the public 

• Water Fountain  
o A proposed planning application was to be 

submitted, to place the fountain in Ayscoughfee 
Gardens. Railings would be added around the 
fountain to help prevent anti-social behaviour and 
historical feature boards would also be added to 
create a visual feature.  

• Spalding Cemetery: 
o A new one-way system had been installed and 

roadways resurfaced 
o The old toilet block had been demolished to create 

new parking bays. 
o Notice boards had been placed around the site to 

display the history of the cemetery – one 
noticeboard gave information on the hidden 
footstones that had been found next to a tree in the 
cemetery. 

o The cemetery improvements had received very 
positive feedback from the public. 

• Daffodil Walk 
o Work had been completed at the end of March 2022 

to install 850 metres of new cycle lane and walkway.  
o It was hoped that in the future, work could be 

undertaken to enhance the entrance to the walk to 
make it more noticeable.  

 
Members raised the following points: 
 

• Was there any logical route for visitors to the Cemetery to 
follow in relation to the historical noticeboards? 

o Officers responded that preliminary diagrams for the 
four noticeboards around the Cemetery were being 
drawn up, but there was no particular order for them 
to be followed. 
 

• Some members raised concern that showing an image of 
the proposed siting of the fountain was unnecessary, given 
that a planning application had not yet been submitted. 

Page 4



- 3 - 
 
SPALDING TOWN FORUM - 8 June 2022 

 

 

 

• It would be helpful to have a noticeboard at the entrance of 
the Cemetery to show visitors what could be seen inside. 
 

• It was clear to see that major investment had taken place 
at Ayscoughfee Gardens, and the Cemetery improvements 
had received many positive comments from the Public. 

 

• It was noted that the work of the Friends of Spalding 
Cemetery group should be highlighted - they were very 
dedicated in assisting with the upkeep of the site and 
worked hard all year round.  

 

• The Daffodil Walk had taken some time to get to the stage 
it was at, and lots of positive feedback had been received. 
It was noted that Pedals had done a tremendous amount of 
work in consulting with the Assets team in advising what 
works should be undertaken at Daffodil Walk, and in 
campaigning to ensure that monies available from a 
Section 106 agreement were utilised on completing the 
route. 

 

• It was noted that it was important to keep the notice boards 
up to date and to listen to resident’s feedback.  

 

• Residents had raised some concern with members about 
the Daffodil Walk surface being uneven and that more bins 
could be placed along the route.  

 

• Members offered to assist in the production of a leaflet for 
the Cemetery by including some statistics from the 1851 
religious census. 

 

• Councillor Sneath, who was the County Councillor for the 
area between Spalding and Pinchbeck said she would 
raise the completion of the Daffodil Route with a County 
Council officer. 

 

• It was noted that Lincolnshire County Council (LCC) had 
recently announced another tranche of funding for South 
Holland to promote cycling - it should be stressed that the 
rest of the cycleway should be completed to the same 
standard.  

 

• Had any more surfacing been undertaken since the 
completion of the Daffodil Walk project at the end of 
March? Members had received some feedback from 
residents that certain areas of the route were uneven. 

Page 5



- 4 - 
 
SPALDING TOWN FORUM - 8 June 2022 

 

 

o Officers confirmed that the current surfacing would 
be left to settle for the rest of 2022 and then a 
decision would be made as to whether further 
surfacing was needed. 

 

• If there were areas of concern raised by members of the 
public, could signage be put up to advise that the surfacing 
had to settle? 

o Officers noted this suggestion and confirmed they 
would look into this suggestion.  

 

• The Civic Society explained that they had been engaging 
with the Council about the placement of the water fountain 
and had provided additional information. It was an ongoing 
conversation where no final decision had been made as far 
as the Society was concerned.  
 

   

5. PUBLIC SPACE USE OF SPALDING TOWN CENTRE   

  

 The Assistant Director – Strategic Growth and Development 
introduced the item and explained that there were several 
individual aspects and long-standing town centre issues that had 
to be progressed such as the Traffic Restriction Order, pedestrian 
access along with the presence of cars and the desire to improve 
the connection between the high street and the river.  
 
They were complex issues intrinsically connected to Lincolnshire 
County Council highways who owned most of the roads in the 
town centre. The officer was investigating how SHDC could work 
on a common plan with LCC to address these issues.  
 
It was proposed that a representative group be set up to explore a 
strategy for the town centre and access as a whole with 
engagement sought from residents and businesses. The idea of 
the group was supported by senior officers at LCC Highways. It 
was hoped that the group’s proposals would be presented to the 
Transport Board at LCC. This work would sit alongside the 
improvement plan works which focused on more short-term 
issues, as the above-mentioned issues were wider ranging and 
required a more focussed approach with a wider group of 
partners. 
 
Members raised the following points: 
 

• It was noted that there were similar issues in other town 
centres across the country and there were many different 
opinions across Spalding relating to what needed to be 
done in terms of access to the town centre. The group 

 

Page 6



- 5 - 
 
SPALDING TOWN FORUM - 8 June 2022 

 

 

needed to ask the community what they wanted and 
needed from the town centre.  

 

• The group was a good idea, but the parameters of the town 
centre needed to be defined. It was a challenge that LCC 
owned the bulk of the accessible land within the town 
centre. A town bus that went directly through the town 
centre would be a real benefit for both residents and 
businesses and this idea needed to be promoted. 

 

• Market traders were important users of the town centre, 
and their views in terms of access should be sought.  

 

• It would be a fundamental part of the group’s work to 
consider the experiences of everyone in the town centre, 
especially those with mobility issues. There were some 
relatively minor issues within the town centre, such as 
uneven paving blocks, that needed to be dealt with as a 
matter of urgency - process and delivery should be quicker.  

 

• It was suggested that anyone active in the community in 
respect of the issue of accessibility within the town centre 
needed to be involved in the group’s work. 

 

• It was vital to collaborate with the steering group on ideas 
and engage with the public to gain their views. 

o The Chairman confirmed that it was the ambition of 
the group to have an initial discussion and then to 
consult with the public to gather their views.  

 

• If the public response was that parking was wanted within 
the centre, would that be possible? 

o The Chairman suggested that it was not a 
straightforward answer and the discussion needed 
to be that broad as no options or ideas should be 
left off the table. Questions should be asked and 
then the landscape examined to see how 
appropriate and suitable the idea was and what 
would be needed to make it work. 
 

• It could be a good idea to enable the three car parks in 
town to have 2 hours of free parking.  

o The Chairman noted that there were issues 
surrounding the management of free car parking 
hours.  
 

• What was the timescale for the first meeting of the group to 
be held? 

o The idea would be taken to a future meeting of 

Page 7



- 6 - 
 
SPALDING TOWN FORUM - 8 June 2022 

 

 

Cabinet for approval with the first meeting being set 
up very soon after that with regular meetings to be 
held thereafter. 
 

   

6. TOWN CENTRE IMPROVEMENT PLAN UPDATE   

  

 The Assistant Director – Strategic Growth and Development gave 
a brief update on the Town Centre Improvement Plan where the 
following key points were raised: 

• Environment, Public Realm & Heritage 
o Worked on developing plans for seating 

improvements in the town centre 
o Developed a National Lottery Heritage Fund Bid 
o Commissioned Transported to utilise three areas for 

public art opportunities. 
o Targeted poor-quality properties through 

enforcement powers. 

• Business, Markets and Economy 
o Conducted a feasibility study for a Business 

Improvement District (BID) 
o Commissioned a High Street Business advisor to 

provide 1 to 1 support to high street businesses 
across the district 

o Ran a social media campaign to promote 
independent retailers 

o The Economic Development team were working to 
secure investment and occupiers into empty town 
centre units. 

o Recruitment of a Markets Manager and Markets 
Officer 

o £1.2m of Recovery and Growth Grants had been 
delivered to 147 businesses across the district. 

o Installed a footfall monitor to support funding 
applications 

o Looked at options for better utilising vacant space 
above shops. 

• Events, Culture, Promotion and Awareness Raising 
o An expression of interest to the Arts Council had 

been submitted to establish Ayscoughfee Hall as a 
National Portfolio Organisation. 

o Worked with Visit Lincolnshire to improve 
representation of the district on their website. 

o ‘Love Your Local Market Roadshow’ and ‘Spring 
Into Spalding’ events had been hugely successful. 

o Plans had been finalised for the Pumpkin Festival in 
October and the Christmas Celebration in 
November.  

• Travel, Transport and Accessibility  

 

Page 8



- 7 - 
 
SPALDING TOWN FORUM - 8 June 2022 

 

 

o Worked with LCC to secure £1.8m in government 
funding to improve cycle access into the town 
through a new dedicated cycleway on Pinchbeck 
Road. 

o Made a case for investment in bus services in and 
around the town centre. 

o Improvement works had been completed to 
signalling systems when entering the town centre. 

 
Members raised the following points: 
 

• There had been difficulties for some businesses in 
accessing the recovery and growth grants as they had to 
be match funded - was there anything in place to help 
businesses who were unable to match fund? 

o Officers responded to say that the Recovery and 
Growth scheme had finished but the match funding 
expected depended on how much funding had been 
requested. There was now a UK Shared Investment 
Fund which was focussed on how the Council could 
develop support for businesses. A flexible approach 
would be used for the running of the next 
programme of funding. 
 

• There had been a government announcement stating that 
Councils could intervene if a shop had remained vacant for 
more than six months. 

o Officers responded that they were aware of the 
scheme but did not have any details on how the 
scheme would work. 
 

• Could above shop accommodation be turned into homes? 
o Officers noted that there was an increasing number 

of local authorities looking at this option and to 
encourage owners to bring forward their space for 
alternative use. Grantham had, for example, 
received significant government funding to assist 
with improving their high street and how more varied 
use of the spaces within their town centre could be 
achieved.  

o Officers were currently trying to understand what 
other authorities were doing and what model would 
work best for our towns and villages. 
 

• The biggest hurdle with above shop accommodation was 
the practicality of access and it could be difficult to split the 
upstairs area from the shop below.  
 

• It appeared that the pest control company had had little 

Page 9



- 8 - 
 
SPALDING TOWN FORUM - 8 June 2022 

 

 

success in addressing the pigeon problem. 
o Officers confirmed that some positive feedback had 

been received but they would seek a further update. 
 

• There were issues with members of the Public still feeding 
the pigeons and it was suggested that a presence may be 
needed within the town centre to make sure people were 
behaving correctly. 

o The Chairman responded that other towns often 
included a funded post within any bids they 
submitted. 

   

7. COMMUNITY GROUP REPRESENTATIVES   

  

 The Chairman asked members to advise Democratic Services of 
any community group representatives who they thought would 
make a positive contribution to the Forum and they would send an 
invite out for the next meeting. 
 
The following points were raised:  
 

• It was understandable that some Community 
representatives had stopped coming along to the meetings 
as they may have thought that their view did not carry the 
same weight as elected members. 

o The Chairman felt that this was not the case as the 
Forum was not a decision-making body and 
therefore no-one’s opinion held greater weight than 
anybody else’s.  
 

• It was noted that that the George Furniss Memorial had 
been vandalised, but the plaque had been retrieved and 
put into safe storage at West Marsh Road Depot. 
 

• The Forum needed to find a way to explain to community 
group representatives what was involved in the Forum’s 
work and how they could have their input. 

 

• It may be useful to have a Swimming Club representative 
attend to discuss recent issues at the Swimming Pool.  

 

• The Forum needed to be as relevant as possible for the 
people of Spalding, as the town did not have democratic 
representation at the present time. 

 

• Could members of the public come to just one meeting and 
raise an issue? 

o The Chairman advised that he would seek advice 
from Democratic Services as to whether this was 

 

Page 10



- 9 - 
 
SPALDING TOWN FORUM - 8 June 2022 

 

 

possible. 
o Members of the Public could contact elected 

members to ask for a particular issue to be raised or 
discussed at the next meeting of the Forum. 
 

• Following the Queen’s Platinum Jubilee, the question of 
whether Spalding should have a Town Council had been 
raised. Was now the time to have that conversation? 

o The Chairman responded that he had been raising 
the question of a Town Council for many years 
without much response. He explained that the public 
needed to express their wish to have a Spalding 
Town Council to the District Council – this question 
had been put to the public before, but there had 
been very little enthusiasm for it. 

   

8. ANY OTHER ITEMS WHICH THE CHAIRMAN DECIDES ARE 
URGENT  

 

  

 There were none.  

   

 
(The meeting ended at 8.21 pm) 
 
(End of minutes) 
 
 

Page 11



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 12



- 10 - 
 

Minutes of a meeting of the SPALDING TOWN FORUM held in via Zoom, on 
Wednesday, 17 August 2022 at 6.30 pm. 
 

 PRESENT  

  
R Gambba-Jones (Chairman) 

 
A C Cronin 
M Hasan 
C J Lawton 

J D McLean 
A M Newton 
G J Taylor 

E J Sneath 
 

 

Apologies for absence were received from or on behalf of Councillors R A Gibson and 
G A Porter, together with John Bland (Civic Society), Roger Perkins (Castle Sports 
Complex Bowls Club) and George Scott (Spalding Transport Forum)  
 
In Attendance:  D Jones (Pedals), the Assistant Director – Finance, the Assistant 
Director – Leisure and Culture, the Communities Manager, the Democratic Services 
Team Leader and the Democratic Services Assistant 
 
 Action By 

9. DECLARATION OF INTERESTS.   

  

 There were none.  

   

10. SPALDING FLOWER PARADE   

  

 The Chairman introduced the item which sought to recommend to 
Cabinet the drawdown of £10,000 of Spalding Special Expenses 
reserves to be used by Spalding Town Forum towards the 
building of a float on behalf of Spalding Residents for the 2023 
Spalding Flower Parade. 
 
It was also proposed that a sub-group of Members be formed to 
lead on the procurement, design, construction and storage of the 
float. 
 
The Assistant Director – Finance was in attendance and advised 
that there was a sum of £104,000 left in reserves for the Spalding 
Special Expenses account as at 31 March 2022. 
 
Members raised the following points: 
 

• Was 10,000 the largest sum taken from the reserves to date? 
o Officers confirmed that £26,000 had been drawn down 

from the reserves in 2021 to contribute towards 
improvement works at Spalding Cemetery. 
 

• Was the draw down amount fixed at £10,000, or was there 
some flexibility with this figure? 

o The Chairman responded that it was decision for the 

 

Page 13

Agenda Item 2.b)



- 11 - 
 
SPALDING TOWN FORUM - 17 August 
2022 

 

 

Cabinet as to a sensible contingency for this sum and 
surmised that it may assist for the sub-group to take 
advice on costs from Stephen Timewell, the organiser 
of the event. 
 

• The Forum wished to recognise the hard work of Stephen 
Timewell and his fellow organisers in getting the Parade to the 
point it was at in such a small amount of time. 
 

• It was confirmed that meetings had taken place between the 
Portfolio Holder for Communities, the Assistant Director – 
Leisure and Culture and the Communities Manager and Mr 
Timewell to provide advice surrounding the planning of the 
event. 
 

• It was suggested that the fund for the float could be boosted 
by fundraising events by individual members of the Forum. 

o The Chairman suggested that the funds for the first 
year would rely heavily on the draw down but for the 
years to come the float should be self-sufficient and not 
rely on taxpayer funds. 
 

• It was recognised that funds needed to be available as soon 
as possible to enable material costs for the float to be paid for. 
 

• Would it be possible for a sponsor to come forward to cover 
the cost of the float? 

o The Chairman responded that any sponsorship funds 
would need to be confirmed and paid directly to the 
Council, and retained only for the purpose of the float, 
as the Spalding Town Forum was not a constituted 
body. 
 

• The Assistant Director – Leisure and Culture was also in 
attendance at the meeting and suggested working with a 
partner organisation, such as Transported Arts, on the 
construction of the float. 

o The Chairman suggested that it was a matter of the 
time available and the need for the float to be a 
community project, but that this was an area that the 
sub-group could look into. 
 

AGREED: 
 

a) That a recommendation be made to Cabinet for a £10,000 
drawdown from Spalding Special Expenses Reserves to be 
used for the construction of a float on behalf of Spalding 
Residents. 

Page 14



- 12 - 
 
SPALDING TOWN FORUM - 17 August 
2022 

 

 

 
b) That a sub-group be formed to look at the procurement, 

design, construction and storage of the float. 
   

11. ANY OTHER ITEMS WHICH THE CHAIRMAN DECIDES ARE 
URGENT  

 

  

 There were none.  

   

 
(The meeting ended at 7.18 pm) 
 
(End of minutes) 
 
 

Page 15



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 16



 

 

 

 

REPORT TO: Spalding Town Forum October 2022 

DATE: 13th October 2022 

SUBJECT: 

 

PURPOSE:  

Spalding Special Expenses 2021-22 and Quarter 1 Forecast 2022-23 

 

To consider the Spalding Special Expenses for 2021-22 and Quarter 

1 forecast 2022-23 

KEY DECISION: N/A 

REPORT OF: 

REPORT AUTHOR: 

Deputy Chief Executive (Corporate Development) S151 

Edward Brindle – Strategic Finance Manager 

WARD(S) AFFECTED: Spalding Town Forum 

EXEMPT REPORT? No 

 

SUMMARY 

1.0 This report is presented to the Spalding Town Forum to provide detail of the outturn 
against budget for 2021/22. The budget has been reported to the Town Forum throughout 
the year. 
 

1.1 The report includes an update to the forecast for 2022/23. 
 

RECOMMENDATIONS 

1. That Spalding Town Forum Members note the Spalding Special Expenses Outturn for 
2021/22. 

2. That Spalding Town Forum Members note the forecast for 2022/23. 

 

 

 

Page 17

Agenda Item 4.



Background 

The budget of £226,900 for 2021/22 was presented to the Town Forum on 22nd March 2022 and approved by Council 3rd March 2022. The outturn for the 

year is detailed in section 3 of this report. 

This report is presented to the Spalding Town Forum to provide detail of the outturn against budget for 2021/22. The budget has been reported to the Town 

Forum throughout the year. 

The report includes an update to the forecast for 2022/23 as at the end of Quarter 1 30th June 2022. 

REPORT 

For 2021/22 the commentary on the following pages highlights the variations in actual spend from the original budget. An overall underspend has been 
achieved of £27,664, which has been transferred to the Spalding Special Account reserves. 
 

COMMENTARY 
 
Spalding Special Expenses 2021-22 
 

  Subjective Analysis 
Revised Budget 

2021/22 Outturn 

Variance 
Outturn to 

Budget Comments 

Allotments Employees Direct 700 700 0   

  Income (4,400) (4,635) (235)   

  Premises 6,500 6,867 367   

  Recharges         

  Support services 1,300 1,278 (22)   

Allotments Total   4,100 4,210 110   

Ayscoughfee Leisure Employees Direct 33,500 27,500 (6,000) Unused Agency Budget 

  Income (7,000) (6,000) 1,000   

  Premises 7,700 8,198 498   

  Supplies & Services 7,200 4,082 (3,118)   

  Support services 1,400 1,366 (34)   

Ayscoughfee Leisure Total   42,800 35,147 (7,653)   

Cemeteries Employees Direct 37,100 37,100 0   

 Income (25,200) (31,707) (6,507)  

P
age 18



 Premises 25,900 18,320 (7,580)  

  Supplies & Services 300 144 (156)   

  Support Services 2,700 2,693 (7)   

  Transport 0 31 31   

 Capital Expenditure charged in Year 0 26,000 26,000  

Cemeteries Total   40,800 52,582 17,782   

Christmas Decorations Premises 300 0 (300)   

  Supplies & Services 7,600 7,552 (48)   

Christmas Decorations Total   7,900 7,552 (348)   

Halley Stewart Employees Direct 1,000 1,000 0   

  Income (6,900) (2,900) 4,000   

  Premises 38,400 28,296 (10,104) 
Responsive and programmed repairs under 
budget  

  Supplies & Services 300 2,225 1,925 Legal work. 

  Support Services 2,300 2,254 (46)   

Halley Stewart Total   35,100 30,874 (4,226)   

Monkshouse Lane Employees Direct 400 400 0   

  Income (1,500) (610) 890   

  Premises 26,600 22,028 (4,572) Responsive Maintenance Saving 

  Supplies & Services 200 0 (200)   

  Support Services 2,300 2,254 (46)   

Monkshouse Lane Total   28,000 24,072 (3,928)   

Spalding Special Contributions Employees Direct 8,700 8,700 0   

  Movement in Reserves 0 0 0   

  Supplies & Services 7,700 11,450 3,750 Riverside expenses £3.75k. 

  Transfer Payments 9,300 9,250 (50)   

Spalding Special Contributions Total   25,700 29,400 3,700   

P
age 19



Spalding Special Recreation Employees Direct 600 600 0   

  Premises 40,800 40,800 0   

  Supplies & Services 300 0 (300)   

  Transfer Payments 800 0 (800)   

Spalding Special Recreation Total   42,500 41,400 (1,100)   

Grand Total   226,900 225,236 (1,664)   

 
 

Reserve Outturn 2021/22:   

Balance (129,976)   
Contribution to SSE Reserve 
(1,664)   

Balance c/f (131,640)   

 
Spalding Special Expenses Quarter 1 Forecast 

Please note that Salary and Grounds Maintenance recharges will be posted at the end of the Financial Year. 

Cost Centre Name Subjective Analysis 
Revised Budget 
2022/23 Actual 2022/23 

Forecast Outturn 
2022 /23 

Forecast Outturn 
Variance Comments 

Allotments Employees Direct 900 0 900 0   

  Income (4,400) (4,552) (4,400) 0  

  Premises 6,500 1,088 6,500 0  

  Support services 1,300 0 1,300 0  

Allotments Total   4,300 (3,464) 4,300 0   

Ayscoughfee Leisure Employees Direct 35,090 0 35,090 0  

  Income (7,000) (6,000) (7,000) 0   

  Premises 7,700 6,980 7,700 0   

  Supplies & Services 7,200 (320) 7,200 0  

  Support services 1,400 0 1,400 0  

Ayscoughfee Leisure Total   44,390 660 44,390 0   

Cemeteries Employees Direct 38,620 0 38,620 0  

  Income (25,200) (11,898) (25,200) 0   

P
age 20



  Movement in reserves 0 0 0 0   

  Premises 26,170 5,524 26,170 0   

  supplies and services 300 0 300 0   

  Support Services 2,700 0 2,700 0   

  Transport 0 0 0 0   

  Depreciation 0 0 0 0   

Cemeteries Total   42,590 (6,373) 42,590 0   

Christmas Decorations Premises 390 0 390 0   

  Supplies & Services 7,600 0 7,600 0 Invoice not due until later in the year. 

  Depreciation 0 0 0 0   

Christmas Decorations Total   7,990 0 7,990 0   

Halley Stewart Employees Direct 1,100 0 1,100 0   

  Income (6,900) (1,405) (6,900) 0   

  Premises 39,450 1,814 39,450 0  

  Supplies & Services 300 180 300 0   

  Support Services 2,300 0 2,300 0  

Halley Stewart Total   36,250 589 36,250 0   

Monkshouse Lane Employees Direct 460 0 460 0  

  Income (1,500) 0 (1,500) 0   

  Premises 26,930 897 26,930 0   

  Supplies & Services 200 0 200 0   

  Support Services 2,300 0 2,300 0  

  Depreciation 0 0 0 0   

Monkshouse Lane Total   28,390 897 28,390 0   

Spalding Special Contributions Employees Direct 9,450 0 9,450 0  

  Movement in Reserves 7,700 0 7,700 0 CCTV contribution to follow. 

P
age 21



  Transfer Payments 9,300 0 9,300 0 
Voluntary car scheme payments and Churchyard 
maintenance payments to follow. 

Spalding Special Contributions Total   26,450 0 26,450 0   

Spalding Special Recreation Employees Direct 870 0 870 0  

  Premises 40,800 0 40,800 0    

  Supplies & Services 300 0 300 0   

  Transfer Payments 800 0 800 0   

Spalding Special Recreation Total   42,770 0 42,770 0   

Grand Total   233,130 (7,691) 233,130 0   

       

 

P
age 22



 

 

APPENDICES 

None 

 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 

None 

 

CHRONOLOGICAL HISTORY OF THIS REPORT 

N/A 

 

REPORT APPROVAL  

Report author: Edward Brindle – Strategic Finance Manager – PSPS 

Edward.brindle@pspsl.co.uk 

Signed off by: Samantha Knowles – Deputy 151 Officer. 

Approved for publication: Christine Marshall – Deputy Chief Executive – S151 

 

Page 23



 

Page 24



Spalding Town Centre Improvement Plan

October 2022 Update

P
age 25

A
genda Item

 5.



Environment, Public 

Realm & Heritage
• We are further developing designs and costings for four areas of public realm and seating 

improvement at Swan Walk, Hall Place, Red Lion Street and the Riverside

• We have submitted a National Lottery Heritage Fund bid for the town to develop better wayfinding 

and heritage trails, including work to position the town to access more funds through the NLHF into 

the future. The outcome of the bid submission should be received in January 2023 with a view to 

start work early February 2023. The project will have a 12-month delivery period due to complete 

Feb 2024. 

• We are developing plans for the redevelopment of the Sheep Market toilets. We have also 

completed maintenance and refurbishments to the public toilets at Winfrey Avenue, Vine Street 

and Ayscoughfee. The new provision includes £50,000 grant funded ‘adult changing’ facilities, 

making the town more accessible. 

• The remodeling of Ayscoughfee Café is now complete. Customer own toilets have been installed 

with adult changing facilities, a bigger restaurant to seat more customers, bigger kitchen and new 

look to the café to attract more visitors and shoppers and allow the café to hold more events 

throughout the year. 

• We are supporting Transported to submit an Arts Council England bid for public art interventions 

down Abbey Passage to brighten up the area and make the passage feel safer, welcoming and 

more attractive.

• We are supporting Spalding Civic Society and Transported to progress public art interventions on 

the empty wall of Superdrug

• Amongst many other outcomes, our £20m Levelling Up Fund bid for the Castle Sports Complex 

site seeks to bring about physical regeneration of a 13 acres immediately adjacent to the town's 

retail core

• We are targeting poor quality properties through our enforcement powers starting with an informal 

approach. So far, this is proving to be a successful approach. We will continue to identify and target 

poor quality properties.

P
age 26



Business, Markets and 

Economy
• The Subgroup have commissioned a feasibility study for a Business Improvement District (BID). That study 

supports the view that there is an appetite within the business community to explore a BID and/or a more 

formalised business-led partnership. The subgroup is keen to progress further engagement with the business 

community to explore this further. Work on further engagement within the business community will 

commence in the coming weeks. 

• We commissioned a High Street Business advisor who provided 1:2:1 support and advice to a total of 50 high 

street business across the district. Feedback received so far has been positive and businesses have found they 

have benefitted from this support. We are looking at funding to roll this out again, over a longer time frame. 

• We have run a social media campaign to promote our independent retailers, with videos and online content. 

• The Economic Development team continue to work to secure investment and occupiers into High Street units 

and town centre pubs. 

• A dedicated Markets Manager and Markets Officer are now in position with a focus on developing and 

strengthening the market. 

• Amongst many other outcomes, our £20m Levelling Up Fund bid for the Castle Sports Complex site seeks to 

diversify and improve the towns offer, with an aim to increase wider footfall that can support the high street 

economy

• A total of £1.2 million of Recovery and Growth Grants has been delivered to 147 businesses across the district. 

These grants were of huge benefit to our local businesses as well the town centre and wider South Holland 

economy. 

• Installation of Footfall monitor within the town centre to track trends in footfall on the high street. Trend data 

provided by the monitor will also support funding applications, such as the National Lottery Fund bid. 

P
age 27



Events, Culture, Promotion and Awareness Raising

• We have submitted an Expression of Interest to Arts Council England to establish Ayscoughfee Hall as a ‘National 
Portfolio Organisation’ with ACE. If successful, this will significantly increase the arts and culture offer for 
Ayscoughfee and in turn drive footfall into the town centre. 

• The subgroup have helped shape Transported’s programme and will continue to work with Transported to bring 
events, culture and arts projects to South Holland. 

• We are working with Visit Lincolnshire and Destination Lincolnshire to ensure that the town and the wider distict is 
well represented on their website and social media channels

We utilized Government Funding in order to progress the following Spring events:

• Love Your Local Market Roadshow - a weeklong event that took place across the market towns of South Holland 
which included street entertainment, stage with performances, crafts, face painting, balloon modelling and crazy 
golf

• Spring Into Spalding which consisted of a spring themed day of activity in Spalding town centre. The event was 
hugely successful and saw a great increase in footfall with visitors enjoying the many spring themed activities such 
as spring themed crafts, maypole workshop, brass band performances, garden themed activities as well as street 
and staged performances throughout the day. 

Plans finalised for Pumpkin Festival and Christmas Celebration:

• Pumpkin Festival – Fri 7th and Sat 8th Oct 2022. The Friday evening will see an illuminated trail round Ayscoughfee 
gardens featuring pumpkin and harvest themed scenes created through community arts projects and inclusion of 
a fire garden delivered by Transported, as well as barn dance style evening of entertainment on the bowling 
green. The Saturday will see Spalding Outdoor Market and specialist market of additional traders and charities as 
well as entertainment to include a stage with live musical entertainment, family friendly activities such as ride on 
tractors and crafts, street entertainment, pumpkin sculpture trail and a pumpkin themed attraction (such as a 
Cinderella’s corner)

• Christmas Celebration – Saturday 26th November. The event will see the Spalding Outdoor Market accompanied 
by specialist market with additional traders and charities, live entertainment, family friendly activities, craft 
activities, street entertainment, fancy dress competition, Carols by Candlelight and Christmas Lights switch on, 
licensed area for mulled wine and Baileys Hot Chocolate, as well as activities throughout the day at Ayscoughfee 
Hall. 

P
age 28



We are developing a stock of professional photographs 
to promote Spalding and the wider South Holland area 
as a place to live, work and visit. 

P
age 29



Travel, Transport and 

Accessibility • We have worked with LCC to secure £1.8m in government 
funding to improve cycle access into the town, through a 
new dedicated cycleway on Pinchbeck Road. We are now 
working with LCC to support the delivery of this scheme. 

• The group have also made the case for investment in bus 
services that better link the suburbs of the town with the 
town centre, and specifically in terms of how routes may 
better serve stopping points closer to the high street. Work 
has commenced with LCC and partners to look at how the 
suggestions could be implemented. 

• Lincolnshire County Council have just finished 
improvements to the signalling systems at Windsover Road / 
Swan Street / Kings Road and Winfrey Avenue. This will help 
with town centre traffic flow through use of technology and 
better syncing. 

• Our levelling up funding bid for the Castle Sports Complex 
sites seeks investment in cycle and walking route through 
the site to the town centre

• £100k is budgeted for the refurbishment of the bus station, 
making it a more welcoming and safer space for residents 
and visitors to use. 

P
age 30



Thank you

Please feel free to direct any thoughts, comments and/or questions to:

Bethany.Stinson@sholland.gov.uk
Bethany Stinson, Town Centre Improvement Plan Coordinator

P
age 31

mailto:Bethany.Stinson@sholland.gov.uk


T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	2.a) Spalding Town Forum - 8 June 2022 (copy enclosed)
	Minutes

	2.b) Special Spalding Town Forum - 17 August 2022 (copy enclosed)
	Minutes

	4. Q1 Spalding Special Expenses Forecast Outturn 2022/23
	5. Spalding Town Centre Improvement Plan Update

